Massinass School in the 1840’s –  a short lived experiment

(Summary)
Mr Edward Coll of Derryart, Creeslough, Co. Donegal, applied to the Commissioners for National Education in Dublin on 15 February 1842 seeking funds to pay a teacher and to buy books for a school at Massinass, (sometimes spelt Mafsinafs), near Creeslough (spelt Crieslagh in the application letter.)   (See copies of original documents)

The building was 31 feet long and 16 feet broad, built of stone and lime with a thatched roof and could accommodate between 70 and 90 children.

The Commissioners for National Education was established in 1831 by the British government with an annual grant of £30,000 to provide education for the poor of Ireland, the first time a successful attempt was made by the state to set up an educational system open to all.

As the Commissioners would only give money to an already existing school Mr Coll had taken steps to establish this school before applying for grants. 

Mr Coll’s application letter and a report by William Savage, Superintendent of National Schools provide additional information.

It would appear that the National School system was strongly opposed by some important people in the area at first. Mr Savage reported that he encountered opposition from the “Rector of the Established Church” (the Church of Ireland) and from “the parish priest”.

But the Presbyterian clergyman, “who has but few hearers”, and the Roman Catholic curate “were well disposed towards “ Mr Coll’s new school.

The local parish priest, Rev J. Magee, had established 2 independent primary schools in the area in 1839, seemingly under his own control, both of which continued to operate until 1841. Then, in 1842, his parishioners presented a petition against him to their local bishop, alleging among other things that Rev J. Magee was opposed to the National School system. After that he seems to have closed his 2 schools and ceased “to have anything to do with schools”.

As the local clergy could not agree Mr Edward Coll stepped in and set up this national school at Massinass which was attended by children of all denominations. School

commenced at 9. 00 a.m. during the summer months and at 10.00 a.m. during the winter, finishing at 3. 00 p.m.  Saturday was set aside for Religious Education when all local clergy were invited to instruct members of their own flocks.

Mr Savage reported that there were 84 males and 49 females on the books, with an average attendance of 39 males and 25 females. It is interesting that males far outnumbered females. How was one teacher to cope with all these children?

The new teacher was William Sweeney, aged 37, who had previously worked in the nearby Cashel (Cashelmore ?) national school and who was paid £4 for six months work. The school was given £4.  0.  0. for books to start with, enough to provide for 100 scholars.

Things seemed to go satisfactorily for a few years until January 8, 1846 when the teacher was fined 10 shillings for impertinence. ( The Great Famine was just beginning at that very time.) William Sweeney resigned on 30 January 1847 and P. Boyle took over on 12 May 1847. 

Then disaster struck in October 1848 when the Inspector discovered that the school building had been demolished by the local landlord, Mr A. Stewart. No reason was given for this drastic action.

The children were then transferred to Kilmacloo National School and the Commissioners for National Education refused to give any more money to Massinass school.

Nothing more is noted in the registers in the National Archives in Dublin until May 1895 when £350.  13. 4. was granted by the Commissioners to build a new school which opened in 1896.

**************************************          *********************

Documents

Massinass School

File ED 1 / 24/  57  in the National Archives, Dublin  (Summary)
Roll Number 3471

1. Letter requesting aid towards the payment of Teachers’ Salary and for Supply of Books from the commissioners for National Education, dated 15 February 1842;   Application Form was received by the Commissioners in Dublin on 26 February 1842.

“It is situated in the Barony of Kilmacrenan, parish of Clondahorky and townland of Massinass.

Dunfanaghy is the nearest Post Town, north west.

A thatched house, in good repair, contains two Apartments, each 14 feet multiplied by 12 feet.

The furniture consists of 3 tables, 8 or 9 forms each 8 feet in length, as also, a chest for Books. 

The teacher’s name is William Sweeney, aged 37 years.

The average daily attendance varies from 70 to 90.

The Hours of Attendance in the Winter Season are from 10 o’clock till 3, and in the summer from 9 till 3 o’clock.

Saturday is altogether set apart for Religious Instruction at which time Clergymen of all Religious Denominations have free access to it.

The books used will be those given by your Honourable Board without exception.

Visitors have free admittance during the school hours.

The school is managed by Edward Coll, of Derryart – Post Town, Dunfanaghy.

Signed:  Edwd Coll, R.C. Layman

Sent to: Commissioners for National Education, Education Office, Marlboro Street, Dublin.

Written on back of this letter:  BO (By Order) on 11 August 1842: Salary to William Sweeney from 1st March 1842.

2. Application Form, Received by Commissioners on 26 February 1842.

Summary of information:-

School located at Massinass, Co. Donegal

Patron/ Correspondent:  Mr E. Coll, Crieslagh, Dunfanaghy.

School established in March 1842.

Parish of Clondahorky;  Townland of Massinass.; Barony of Kilmacrenan.

Nearest Post Town:  Crieslagh, one and a half miles asway.

Other local schools:  a)  Cashel National School, 2 miles away, an old Kildare St. School,  b)  At Ards, one mile away.

School has no connexion to any other society, etc., is not attached to any church, etc.; is not attached to any religious house.

Building materials:  Stone and lime, and thatched.  In good repair.

Dimensions:  31 ft long, 16 ft broad and 8 ft high.

Internal dimensions:  28 ft long, 12 ft broad, and 8 ft high

Funding?  From private funds

Rent?  Rent free.

Lease?  No lease.

Other use of building?  Employed wholly for use of children.

Ventilated and warmed?   Yes.

No teacher’s house.

No other apartments

Furniture:  3 tables affording accommodation for 30 and 8 Forms sufficient for 54.  There is besides a chest for books.

Teacher:  William Sweeney, 37 years old.

His teacher training?  In Kildare Street.

Testimonials, his fitness to work?  He conducted the Cashel Nat School for 3 or 4 years.  W. Sweeney had £8 in Cashel N.S.. to November 1839 – school then closed.  His character?  Good.  Method of conducting school?  Middling.  Has no other occupations.

Local funds?  The payments of the children, varying from one shilling to 3 shillings, paid to the teacher.

Saturday is for Religious Instruction.

Population of the Parish?  I cannot tell.  All would send their children to a school established for the benefit of the poor.  School population is of mixed religion, but the majority is composed of R. Catholics.

No of children present?  37 males and 19 females, total of 56

How many on the books for the last six months?  84 males and 49 females, a total of 133.

Average attendance for the last 6 months?  39 males, 25 females, a total of 64.  There will be an increase, I cannot tell to what extent.

There is no management committee.

Days and hours of instruction?  5 days a week,  6 hours in summer and 5 hours in winter.  It commences at 9 in summer and 10 in winter and closes at 3.

Communications with local clergy?  I have done so.  The parish priest and Rector of Established Church are opposed to all National Schools. The Presbyterian clergyman, who has but few hearers and the R.C. curate are well disposed towards the school.

Circumstances for application?  This is an Application for Books and Salary from the parish of Clondahorky in which a National School has not yet been established, on account of Revd J. Magee’s ( a priest) opposition. At the close of 1839 he established 2 schools which continued in operation to the close of 1841. In the beginning of this present year his hearers petitioned his Bishop against him alleging among other things his opposition to the National School system. He has remained quiet since and has ceased to have anything to do with schools. This application school was established in place of one of those before mentioned. I know of nothing that should prevent it from being taken into connexion..

Local support?  All, except for the R.C. priest and Prot Rector, wish that the Application should be entertained.

Signed:   William Savage,  Superintendent of National Schools,  11th July 1842.

(Notes made on 31 May 2011.)

Massinass School – information from files in National archives (Summary)
Information taken from ED  2  11, Folio 184,  in National Archives

Massinass School:- ( then spelled Mafsinafs )

Roll Number 3471 (Different from that of 1895)

Parish: Clondahorky

Townland:  Massinass

Established:  March 1842.     Classification of Application:  3

Dimensions:  28 ft  x  12 ft.

Taken into connexion by Board of Commissioners of National Education on 11 August 1842

No propinquity to religious houses

Correspondent and Post town:  Mr Edward Coll, Crislagh (Creeslough),  Letterkenny.

1842:  August 11:  Granted salary from 1st March 1842.  Books for 100 scholars.   £4.  0.  0.  for requisites paid in August 1842.

1842:  October 22:  Paid salary on 30 September 1842  of  £4.  13.  4. for  6 Months to Teacher William Sweeney.   80 male scholars and 50 female scholars on roll.

1843:  Requisites paid in February of 18/ 8 and half pence.   Art  -  13/ 1

1843:  April 26:  Paid salary to 31 March 1843 of £4.  to William Sweeney.

1844:  Requisites:  Paid in January 1844:  £1.  2.  7.;  In May paid 13/ 4, and in December £1.  7.  5.

1845:  Requisites in July : paid £1.  1.  0.

1846:  January 8th:  By Order, on Report of the 25 August, “ Fine teacher 10/ - for impertinence and admonish and call for explanation as to why the Books were not obtained from the Depot.”

1847:  April 30:  Superintendent reports school closed since 30th of January, Sweeney having resigned at that time.  A successor is appointed who will commence on the 12th May.  New teacher :  P. Boyle.

1848:  October 27:  Inspector reported house thrown down by landlord, A. Stewart – and Teacher and children are removed to a more suitable house at Kilmacloo which has purpose and placing under the commissioners.

1848:  December 7:  By Order on above Report strike off Roll Number 3471 and cancel grants from 30 September 1848, school having ceased.

Off : By Order  7th December 1848

(End of entries in this Register.)

Notes taken on 13 May 2011.

Second stage of life for Massinass School  (1895 – 1904)
Massinass National School, (1895 – 1904)

Teachers causing problems! (Summary)
The Commissioners of National Education, according to their register ED/2/53, gave a grant of £294. 13. 4, on 7 May 1895 towards the building of a new school in Massinass. The total cost of the school was estimated to be £412. 0. 0.  A grant of £40. 4. 4 was also given to help “enclose” the site. On 25 August 1895 the building grant was increased to £274.  13.  4 and the total cost was now expected to be £350. 13. 4.  The lease on the property was drawn up by 15 August 1895 and the grants had been given to the Manager and the Board of Works by 11 September 1895 so that work could begin. Thomas Quinn, the Principal, had his salary confirmed on 2 March 1897. and £4. 10. 0 was given by the Commissioners for books and other equipment.

But problems appear to have emerged. On 12 May 1899 the Manager was asked “to secure more regular attendance of pupils”. 

On 30 April 1900 Teacher H.E. O’Reilly was “cautioned on irregularities of accounts and neglect of timetable”.

On 8 May 1900 the teacher was “admonished on neglect of instruction in arithmetic”.

The new manager, Rev Hugh Devine PP who was appointed in November 1900 in succession to Rev J. Boyle PP had his attention drawn on 14 March 1901 to “the untidy and dusty state of the school room and the filthy state of the out houses (toilets)”.

The manager was requested, on 18 November 1901, “to caution the teacher to be more attentive to his duties in future and to avoid arrears in school accounts”.

The unfortunate manager was then told on 16 May 1902 that “the teacher should apply himself with more assiduity to the discharge of his duties, that a more deliberate style of reading should be aimed at, and that care should be taken to correct errors in pronunciation”.  Someone, it appears, did not like the Creeslough area accent.

Teacher H. E. O’Reilly was still causing concern on 24 July 1902 when the Manager was informed “that the action of Teacher H.E. O’Reilly in remaining on licensed premises after legal hours was considered highly undesirable for a man in the position of Teacher of a National School”.

The by 10 April 1903 Teacher H .E. O’Reilly had “left the school without giving any notice whatsoever” even though he had already been paid for another three months work.

The Manager was requested on 15 June 1901 to “have the necessary structural alterations made in the out houses ( toilets) to enable the pits to be regularly cleaned in the future”.

This is where this intriguing file ends.  Who would want to be a school manager?

Written 27 June 2011.

Roll Number: 14775

Information taken from ED/ 2/ 53, Folio 52 in the National Archives, Dublin. (Summary)
ED 2 is Register summarising the Commissioners’ dealings with individual schools, 1835 – 1905.
This file is a list of communications from the Commissioners of National Education with the school, as follows:-

7 May 1895:   £294. 13. 4 granted to build school, on a total expenditure of £412. 0. 0. (So school had to find the difference.)  Grant of £40. 4. 4. was given to “enclose” on total expenditure of £60. 6. 6. ( Must have been for site and for wall round school?).

Plan IV A for 120 children.

27 August 1895:  (In Building File) Grant of the 7th May 1895 was increased from £274.  13.  4.  to £350. 13. 4. on a total expenditure of £526. 0. 0.  The grant to “enclose” remained unchanged.  Plan IV A to be followed.

15 August 1895 :  Lease was executed.

11 September 1895:  Grants were advanced to the Manager and B. P. Works.  (Board of  Public Works?)

2 March 1897:  Salary at usual rate was granted to Thomas Quinn as Principal from 14 December 1896.  Free stock to value of £4.  10. 0. was granted on usual conditions.

12 May 1899:  The Manager was asked to secure more regular attendance of pupils.

30 April 1900:  Teacher H. F. O’Reilly was cautioned on irregularities of accounts and neglect of T.T.  (timetable?)

8 May 1900:  Teacher was admonished on neglect of instruction in arithmetic.

15 November 1900.  Rev Hugh Devine PP was recognised as Manager in succession to Rev J. Boyle PP on the nomination of the Trustees.

14 March 1901:  The Manager’s attention was called to the untidy and dusty state of the school room and the filthy state of the out offices (toilets)

18 November 1901:  The Manager was requested to caution the teacher to be more attentive to his duties in future and to avoid arrears in school accounts.

6 May 1902:  An increase of salary to Daniel T. McGinley was refused.

16 May 1902:  The Manager was informed that the teacher should apply himself with more assiduity to the discharge of his duties, that a more deliberate style of reading should be aimed at, and that care should be taken to correct errors in pronunciation. The Teacher was cautioned on neglect of Practical Rule XIV.  (Whatever that was?)

24 July 1902:  The Manager’s attention was called to Rule 180 (a) regarding timetable and the Manager was informed that the action of Teacher H.E. O’Reilly in remaining on licensed premises after legal hours was considered highly undesirable for a man in the position of Teacher of a National School.

10 April 1903:  The Manager stated that Teacher H. E. O’Reilly left the school without giving any notice whatsoever. The Manager therefore claimed the salary due to the Teacher in consequence of bond in Agreement Form No 2.  

21 August 1903: The Manager was informed that his request could not be complied with and that it was open to him to take legal proceedings against Mr. O’Reilly for recovery of three months salary as stated in the Agreement.

15 June 1904: The Manager was requested to have the necessary structural alterations made in the out offices to enable the pits to be regularly cleaned in the future.

(Note at end of this file:  Continued in new Registry, Volume 4, Folio 83. )

*****************************************************************

